AUDIT, GOVERNANCE AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE MEETING

Date: Monday 15 November 2021

Time: 6.30 p.m.

Venue: Town Hall, High Street, Maidstone

Membership:

Councillors Bartlett (Vice-Chairman), Brindle, Coulling (Parish Representative), Cox, Cuming, Daley, Fissenden, Perry (Chairman), J Sams, Titchener (Parish Representative) and Trzebinski

The Chairman will assume that all Members will read the reports before attending the meeting. Officers are asked to assume the same when introducing reports.

AMENDED AGENDA

Page No.

- 1. Apologies for Absence
- 2. Notification of Substitute Members
- 3. Urgent Items
- 4. Notification of Visiting Members
- 5. Disclosures by Members and Officers
- 6. Disclosures of Lobbying
- 7. To consider whether any items should be taken in private because of the possible disclosure of exempt information
- 8. Minutes of the meeting held on 28 September 2021
- 9. Question and answer session for members of the public (if any)
- 10. Questions from Members to the Chairman (if any)
- 11. Committee Work Programme 2021/22
- 12. Annual Complaints Report 2020/21
- 13. Data Protection Update
- 14. Annual Governance Statement Mid Year Update

Issued on Thursday 11 November 2021

Continued Over/:

Alison Brown

Alison Broom, Chief Executive



- 15. Interim Internal Audit and Assurance Report 2021/22
- 16. Treasury Management Mid-Year Review 2021/22
- 17. Statement of Accounts 2020/21

224 - 255

Appendix 2 – External Auditor's Audit Findings Report 2020-21

18. Budget Strategy - Risk Assessment Update

INFORMATION FOR THE PUBLIC

In order to ask a question at this meeting in person or by remote means, please call **01622 602899** or email <u>committee@maidstone.gov.uk</u> by 5 p.m. one clear working day before the meeting (i.e. by 5 p.m. on Thursday 11 November 2021). You will need to provide the full text in writing.

If your question is accepted, you will be provided with instructions as to how you can access the meeting.

In order to make a statement in relation to an item on the agenda, please call **01622 602899** or email <u>committee@maidstone.gov.uk</u> by 5 p.m. one clear working day before the meeting (i.e. by 5 p.m. on Thursday 11 November 2021). You will need to tell us which agenda item you wish to speak on.

If you require this information in an alternative format please contact us, call **01622 602899** or email <u>committee@maidstone.gov.uk</u>.

To find out more about the work of the Committee, please visit **www.maidstone.gov.uk**.



The Audit Findings for Maidstone Borough Council

Year ended 31 March 2021

Maidstone Borough Council November 2021



Contents

	\frown	Section	Page	The contents of this report relate only to the
(1. Headlines	3	matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be reported to you
		2. Financial statements	5	as part of our audit planning process. It is
		3. Value for money arrangements	15	not a comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to
	Your key Grant Thornton team members are:	4. Independence and ethics	17	change, and in particular we cannot be he responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect the Council or all weaknesses in your internal controls. This
	Paul Dossett	Appendices		report has been prepared solely for your
N	Audit Partner	A. Action plan	20	benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We
0	E paul.dossett@uk.gt.com	B. Follow up of prior year recommendations	21	do not accept any responsibility for any loss
		C. Audit adjustments	22	occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the
	Trevor Greenlee	D. Fees	25	content of this report, as this report was
	Audit Manager	E. Audit Opinion	26	not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.
	E trevor.greenlee@uk.gt.com			

This Audit Findings presents the observations arising from the audit that are significant to the responsibility of those charged with governance to oversee the financial reporting process, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK) 260. Its contents have been discussed with management and the Audit Governance and Standards Committee.

Name: Paul Dossett For Grant Thornton UK LLP Date :

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another's acts or omissions.

Joshua Unsworth

E joshua.t.Unsworth@uk.gt.com

Audit in-charge

1. Headlines

This table summarises the key findings and other matters arising from the statutory audit of Maidstone Borough Council ('the Council') and the preparation of the Council's financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 for those charged with governance.

Financial Statements

Under International Standards of Audit (UK) (ISAs) and the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice ('the Code'), we are required to report whether, in our opinion:

- the Council's financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council and the Council's income and expenditure for the year; and
- have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting and prepared in accordance with the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

We are also required to report whether other information published together with the audited financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement and the Narrative Report, is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Our audit work has been completed remotely in the period August –November 2021. Our findings are summarised at Section 2.

We considered the appropriate accounting treatment for construction costs relating to the Brunswick Street and Union Street housing developments. We agreed with management that the costs of assets being constructed for disposal should be reclassified from PPE assets under construction to inventory. This change in accounting treatment also gives rise to a prior period adjustment in the financial statements. However, we concluded that under statutory provisions these costs could continue to be financed through capital resources. Although this change involves a material change to classification our understanding is that the impact of valuing assets as inventory rather than assets under construction will not be material, and that the adjustments will have no impact on the General Fund balance. We have raised a number of technical issues for management to consider in making the agreed classification amendments.

Our work to date has not identified any other material adjustments to the financial statements and there are no unadjusted misstatements.

Our work is substantially complete. Our remaining work includes;

- completion of testing for PPE revaluations, where there have been some delays in obtaining information from the Council's external valuer;
- completion of creditors and debtors testing;
- completion of audit review and quality control procedures;
- · review of a final set of the financial statements; and
- obtaining a management letter of representation.

Recommendations for management as a result of our audit work are included at Appendix A. Our follow up of recommendations from the prior year's audit are detailed at Appendix B. Audit adjustments are detailed in Appendix C. These adjustments exclude those arising from the reclassification of costs from PPE assets under construction to inventory, as these are currently being finalised by management.

We have concluded that the other information to be published with the financial statements is consistent with our knowledge of the Council and the financial statements we have audited.

Subject to the completion of outstanding work we anticipate issuing an unmodified audit report.

1. Headlines

Value for Money (VFM) arrangements

Under the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit the Council has put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. Auditors are now required to report in more detail on the Council's overall arrangements, as well as key recommendations on any significant weaknesses in arrangements identified during the audit.

Auditors are required to report their commentary on the Council's arrangements under the following specified criteria:

- Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness; _
- Financial sustainability; and
- Governance

We have not yet completed all of our VFM work and so are not in a position to issue our Auditor's Annual Report. We expect Practice ('the Code'), we are required to consider whether to issue our Auditor's Annual Report in line with the National Audit Office's revised deadline, which requires the Auditor's Annual Report to be issued no more than three months after the date of the opinion on the financial statements.

At this stage there are no significant weaknesses in the Council's arrangements which we need to bring to your attention

Statutory duties	
------------------	--

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 ('the Act') also requires us to:

We have not exercised any of our additional statutory powers or duties.

• report to you if we have applied any of the additional powers and duties ascribed to us under the Act; and

will be reported in our Auditor's Annual Report.

to certify the closure of the audit.

Significant Matters

We did not encounter any significant difficulties or identify any significant matters arising during our audit.

We expect to certify the completion of the audit upon the completion of our work on the Council's VFM arrangements, which

2. Financial Statements

Overview of the scope of our audit

This Audit Findings Report presents the observations arising from the audit that are significant to the responsibility of those charged with governance to oversee the financial reporting process, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK) 260 and the Code of Audit Practice ('the Code'). Its contents have been discussed with management and the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee.

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit, in Secondance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) and the Code, which is directed towards forming and expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements.

Audit approach

Our audit approach was based on a thorough understanding of the Council's business and is risk based, and in particular included:

- An evaluation of the Council's internal controls environment, including its IT systems and controls;
- Substantive testing on significant transactions and material account balances, including the procedures outlined in this report in relation to the key audit risks

Conclusion

We have substantially completed our audit of your financial statements. Subject to the completion of outstanding work we anticipate issuing an unmodified audit report.

Acknowledgements

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the assistance provided by the finance team and other staff.

2. Financial Statements

Our approach to materiality

The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but also to disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting **N** practice and applicable law. In our audit plan we reported

In our audit plan we reported a materiality level of £1,700,000. Based on the total expenditure reported in the draft financial statements we updated our materiality to £1.,800,000.

Materiality for the financial statements	1,800,000	This is approximately 2% of gross revenue expenditure.
Performance materiality	1,350,000	Calculated as 75% of headline materiality. This is a measure used in audit testing based upon our assessment of the likelihood of a material misstatement in the financial statements.
Trivial matters	45,000	This is 2.5% of materiality as agreed with the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee.
Materiality for disclosures relating to officer's remuneration and related parties	50,000	Additional inherent sensitivity around such disclosures.

Council Amount (£) Qualitative factors considered



2. Financial Statements - Significant risks

Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK) as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the potential magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood. Significant risks are those risks that have a higher risk of material misstatement.

This section provides commentary on the significant audit risks communicated in our March 2021 Audit Plan.

Risks identified in our Audit Plan	Commentary		
Management override of controls	To address this risk we.		
Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed risk that the	- evaluated the design effectiveness of management controls over journals;		
risk of management over-ride of controls is present in all entities.	- analysed the journals listing and determined the criteria for selecting high risk unusual journals;		
We therefore identified management override of control as an area of significant risk. The related areas of risk include management estimates, use of journals and any significant transactions outside	- identified and tested unusual journals made during the year and the accounts production stage for appropriateness and corroboration; and		
the Council's normal course of business.	- gained an understanding of the accounting estimates and critical judgements applied by management and considered their reasonableness.		
N 33	Our audit work to date has not identified any other issues in respect of this risk.		
On The second se	Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the revenue streams at the Council we have		
Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed risk that	determined that the risk of fraud arising from revenue recognition can be rebutted because:		
revenue may be misstated due to the improper recognition of	 there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition; 		
revenue.	 opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited; and 		
This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor concludes that	• the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities mean that all forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable.		
there is no risk of material misstatement due to fraud relating to revenue recognition.	Our audit work has not identified any issues to change our strategy towards revenue recognition.		
Fraud in expenditure recognition	To address this risk we;		
As most public bodies are net spending bodies, then the risk of material misstatement due to fraud related to expenditure	• inspected transactions around the end of the financial year to assess whether they had been included in the correct accounting period;		
recognition may be greater than the risk of fraud related to revenue recognition. There is a risk the Council may manipulate expenditure to budgets and set targets and we had regard to this	 inspected a sample of accruals made at year end for expenditure not yet invoiced to assess whether the valuation of the accrual was consistent with the value billed after the year; and 		
when planning and performing our audit procedures.	• investigated post yearend and manual journals as part of our journal testing procedures and considered if there		
Management could defer recognition of expenditure by under- accruing for expenses that have been incurred during the period	was evidence of fraud in expenditure recognition.		
but which were not paid until after the year-end or not record expenses accurately in order to improve the financial results.	Our audit work to review creditors and accruals is still in progress. Our work to date has not identified any issues in respect of this risk.		

2. Financial Statements - Significant risks

Risks identified	in our Audit Plan
-------------------------	-------------------

Commentary

Valuation of land and buildings

The Council revalues its land and buildings on a rolling five year cycle, with major assets revalued annually. This valuation represents a significant estimate by management in the financial statements due to the values involved and the sensitivity of this estimate to changes in key assumptions.

We therefore identified the valuation of land and buildings a significant risk.

To address this risk we;

- evaluated management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate, including the instructions issued to the Council's external valuer and the scope of their work;
- evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the external valuer, and challenged the information and assumptions used by the valuer;
- tested, on a sample basis, revaluations made during the year to ensure they had been input correctly into the Council's asset register; and
- evaluated how management concluded that the carrying value of assets not revalued was not materially misstated.

Our work in this area is still in progress. The outstanding work includes testing a sample of 2020/21 revaluation movements where we will require additional information from the Council's external valuer. By agreement with management we liaise with the valuer directly but to date there have been delays in obtaining responses to queries. Management have now contacted the valuer to request that responses are provided promptly.

Brunswick Street and Union Street housing developments: Accounting treatment of transactions

Brunswick Street (Tower Hill Court) and Union Street (Tylers Place) are housing development projects constructed on the sites of former Council car parks. The objective of the projects has been to provide;

-28 units of affordable housing, transferred to MHS Homes on completion

-26 properties for disposal by private sale

-40 flats to be retained by the Council and leased to the Council's subsidiary company, Maidstone Property Holdings Ltd.

Work on the schemes commenced in 2018/19. Work on the 28 properties for transfer to MHS homes and the 26 properties for private sale was completed in 2020/21. Work on the remaining properties has been completed in 2021/22.

In the financial statements for earlier years and the draft financial statements for 2020/21 the Council has classified the costs associated with these schemes as PPE assets under construction. On completion in 2020/21 the properties have then transferred to assets held for sale prior to disposal.

We considered the appropriate accounting treatment for these transactions, having regard to accounting standards, the CIPFA Code of Practice on local authority accounting and the accompanying Code guidance notes. We concluded that, where assets are constructed with the intention of disposal rather than to provide ongoing service potential for the Council, then the costs associated with these assets are more appropriately disclosed as inventory rather than PPE assets under construction. This change in classification also involves changes to the accounting treatment on completion and disposal of the assets. The issue is relevant to those assets completed in 2020/21 and either transferred to MHIS Homes or subject to disposal by private sale. As the amounts involved were material we agreed with management that the accounts would be amended to reflect these changes. The change in accounting treatment also gives rise to a prior period adjustment in the financial statements. Although this change involves a material change to classification, our understanding is that the impact of valuing assets as inventory rather than assets under construction will not be material, and that the adjustments will have no impact on the General Fund balance. We have raised a number of technical issues for management to consider in making the agreed classification amendments.

These assets had previously been financed through the use of capital resources. We considered the appropriate accounting treatment given the change in classification. We concluded that under statutory provisions the costs could continue to be financed through capital resources.

2. Financial Statements - Significant risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Commentary

Valuation of pension fund net liability

The Council's pension fund net liability, as reflected in its balance sheet as the net defined benefit liability, represents a significant estimate in the financial statements.

The pension fund net liability is considered a significant estimate due to the values involved and the sensitivity of the estimate to changes in key assumptions.

The methods applied in the calculation of the IAS 19 estimates are routine and commonly applied by all actuarial firms in line with the requirements set out in the Code of practice for local government accounting (the applicable financial reporting framework). We have therefore concluded that there is not a significant risk of material misstatement in the IAS 19 estimate due to the methods and models used in their calculation.

The source data used by the actuaries to produce the IAS 19 estimates is provided by administering authorities and employers. We do not consider this to be a significant risk as this is easily verifiable.

The actuarial assumptions used are the responsibility of the entity but should be set on the advice given by the actuary. A small change in the key assumptions (discount rate, inflation rate, salary increase and life expectancy) can have a significant impact on the estimated IAS 19 liability. We have therefore concluded that there is a significant risk of material misstatement in the IAS 19 estimate due to the assumptions used in their calculation, and have identified valuation of the Council's pension fund net liability as a significant risk.

To address this risk we :

- updated our understanding of the processes and controls put in place by management to ensure that the Council's pension fund net liability is not materially misstated, and evaluated the design of the associated controls;
- evaluated the instructions issued by management to the actuary as management's expert, and the scope of the actuary's work;
- assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary;
- assessed the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by the Council to the actuary;
- tested the consistency of the pension fund disclosures in the financial statements with the actuary's report;
- confirmed the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made by reviewing the report of the consulting actuary (as auditor's expert) and performing any additional procedures suggested within the report; and
- obtained assurances from the auditor of Kent Pension Fund as to the controls surrounding the validity and accuracy of membership data, contributions data and benefits data sent to the actuary by the pension fund and the fund assets valuation in the pension fund financial statements.

Our audit work has not identified any issues in respect of this risk.

2. Financial Statements - key judgements and estimates

This section provides commentary on key estimates and judgements inline with the enhanced requirements for auditors.

Significant judgement or estimate	Summary of management's approach	Audit Comments	Assessment	
Valuations – Land and Buildings: £124,418,000 Investment property: £25,697,000 Assets Held for Sale: £5,655,000	Other land and buildings comprise specialised assets such as the leisure centre and theatre which are required to be valued at depreciated replacement cost (DRC) at year end, reflecting the cost of a modern equivalent asset necessary to deliver the same service provision. Land and buildings which are not specialised in nature are required to be valued at existing use in value (EUV) at year end.	Work to complete our testing of PPE revaluations is still in progress. Our work to date has not identified any issues relating to the estimates or judgements	TBC	
N	The Council has engaged Harrisons Chartered Surveyors to complete the valuation of properties as at 31 March 2021.	made by management.		
233	Management have also considered if there has been a material change in carrying value for properties not revalued during the year. Management have concluded that there has been no material change in value for these properties during 2020/21.			

Assessment

- [Purple] We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated
- [Blue] We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management's estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic
- [Grey] We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management's estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious
- [Light Purple] We consider management's process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

2. Financial Statements - key judgements and estimates

Significant judgement or estimate	Summary of management's approach	Audit Comments				Assessment
Net pension liability – £89,783,000	At 31 March 2021 the Council had a net pension liability of £89,783,000 relating to the Local Government Pension Scheme as administered by Kent County Council.	We engage an auditor's actuary to assess the work of management's actuary and the reasonableness of the approach used. The auditor's actuary has provided us with indicative ranges for assumptions which we report below. The values used by management's actuary are consistent with the ranges specified by				Light purple
	The Council uses an external actuary, Barnett Waddingham, to provide an actuarial valuation estimate of the Council's assets and liabilities deriving from these schemes.	the auditor's expert. Assumption	Actuary Value	PwC range	Within	
					range?	
	A full valuation is required every three years. The latest full actuarial valuation for the LGPS was completed in 2018/19. A roll forward approach is used in intervening periods. The valuations are based on key assumptions such as life expectancy, discount rates, salary growth and investment return. Given the significant value of the net pension fund liability small changes in assumptions can result in significant valuation movements The Council recognises and discloses the retirement benefit obligation in accordance with the measurement and presentational requirement of IAS 19 'Employee Benefits'.	Discount rate	2.0%	1.95 - 2.05%	✓	
3 2		Pension increase rate	2.85%	2.85 - 2.80%	✓	
		Salary growth	3.80%	CPI + 1%	✓	
		Life expectancy – Males currently aged 45 aged 65	22.9 21.6	21.9 - 24.4 20.5 – 23.1	~	
		Life expectancy – Females currently aged 45 aged 65	25.1 23.6	24.8 - 26.4 23.3 – 25.0	~	

Assessment

- Dark Purple We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated
- Blue We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management's estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic
- Grey
 We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management's estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious
- Light Purple We consider management's process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

2. Financial Statements - other communication requirements

We set out below details of other matters which we, as auditors, are required by auditing standards and the Code to communicate to those charged with

Issue	Commentary	
Matters in relation to fraud	We have previously discussed the risk of fraud with management. We have not been made aware of any significant incidents in the period. No other issues have been identified during the course of our audit procedures	
Matters in relation to related parties	We are not aware of any related parties or related party transactions which have not been disclosed	
Matters in relation to laws and regulations	You have not made us aware of any significant incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations and we have not identified any incidences from our audit work.	
Written representations	A letter of representation has been requested from the Council.	
Confirmation requests from third parties	We seek external confirmations from relevant banks and financial institutions to support our review of the Council's yearend cash and investment balances. For one balance we were unable to access the relevant information using the confirmation procedures advised by the bank. For this balance we used alternative procedures to obtain the assurance required for our opinion purposes. We received positive confirmation for all other balances.	
Accounting practices	We have evaluated the appropriateness of the Council's accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures. Our review found no material omissions in the financial statements.	
Audit evidence and explanations/ significant difficulties	All information and explanations requested from management was provided.	

2. Financial Statements - other communication requirements

	Issue	Commentary
Our responsibility As auditors, we are required to "obtain	Going concern	In performing our work on going concern, we have had reference to Statement of Recommended Practice – Practice Note 10: Audit of financial statements of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2020). The Financial Reporting Council recognises that for particular sectors, it may be necessary to clarify how auditing standards are applied to an entity in a manner that is relevant and provides useful information to the users of financial statements in that sector. Practice Note 10 provides that clarification for audits of public sector bodies.
sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the appropriateness of		Practice Note 10 sets out the following key principles for the consideration of going concern for public sector entities:
management's use of the going concern assumption in the preparation and presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is a material uncertainty about the entity's ability		 the use of the going concern basis of accounting is not a matter of significant focus of the auditor's time and resources because the applicable financial reporting frameworks envisage that the going concern basis for accounting will apply where the entity's services will continue to be delivered by the public sector. In such cases, a material uncertainty related to going concern is unlikely to exist, and so a straightforward and standardised approach for the consideration of going concern will often be appropriate for public sector entities
to continue as a going concern" (ISA (UK) 570).		 for many public sector entities, the financial sustainability of the reporting entity and the services it provides is more likely to be of significant public interest than the application of the going concern basis of accounting. Our consideration of the Council's financial sustainability is addressed by our value for money work, which is covered elsewhere in this report.
		Practice Note 10 states that if the financial reporting framework provides for the adoption of the going concern basis of accounting on the basis of the anticipated continuation of the provision of a service in the future, the auditor applies the continued provision of service approach set out in Practice Note 10. The financial reporting framework adopted by the Council meets this criteria, and so we have applied the continued provision of service approach. In doing so, we have considered and evaluated:
		the nature of the Council and the environment in which it operates
		the Council's financial reporting framework
		• the Council's system of internal control for identifying events or conditions relevant to going concern
		management's going concern assessment.
		On the basis of this work, we have obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence to enable us to conclude that:
		 a material uncertainty related to going concern has not been identified
		 management's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate

appropriate.

236

2. Financial Statements - other responsibilities under the Code

Issue	Commentary					
Other information	We are required to give an opinion on whether the other information published together with the audited financial statements including the Narrative Report is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.					
	Our work to date has not identified any inconsistencies. Subject to the completion of all outstanding work we plan to issue an unmodified opinion in this respect.					
Matters on which	We are required to report on a number of matters by exception in a number of areas:					
e report by Acception	 if the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with disclosure requirements set out in CIPFA/SOLACE guidance or is misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from our audit, 					
	• if we have applied any of our statutory powers or duties.					
	 where we are not satisfied in respect of arrangements to secure value for money and have reported [a] significant weakness/es. 					
	We have nothing to report on these matters.					
Specified procedures for Whole of	We are required to carry out specified procedures (on behalf of the NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) consolidation pack under WGA group audit instructions.					
Government Accounts	Subject to confirmation in the group audit instructions for 2020/21 we anticipate the Council will not exceed the thresholds specified by NAO and that detailed work will not be required.					
Certification of the closure of the audit	We intend to delay the certification of the closure of the 2020/21 audit, as detailed in our audit report, as our VFM work is not yet complete.					



3. Value for Money arrangements

Revised approach to Value for Money work for 2020/21

On 1 April 2020 the National Audit Office introduced a new Code of Audit Practice which comes into effect from audit year 2020/21. The Code introduced a revised approach to the audit of Value for Money. (VFM)

There are three main changes arising from the NAO's new approach:

- A new set of key criteria, covering financial sustainability, governance and improvements in economy, efficiency and effectiveness
- More extensive reporting, with a requirement on the auditor to produce a commentary on arrangements across all of the key criteria.
- Auditors undertaking sufficient analysis on the Council's VFM arrangements to arrive at far more sophisticated judgements on performance, as well as key recommendations on any significant weaknesses in arrangements identified during the audit.

The Code require auditors to consider whether the body has put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. When reporting on these arrangements, the Code requires auditors to structure their commentary on arrangements under the three specified reporting criteria.



Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness

Arrangements for improving the way the body delivers its services. This includes arrangements for understanding costs and delivering efficiencies and improving outcomes for service users.



Financial Sustainability

Arrangements for ensuring the body can continue to deliver services. This includes planning resources to ensure adequate finances and maintain sustainable levels of spending over the medium term (3-5 years)



Governance

Arrangements for ensuring that the body makes appropriate decisions in the right way. This includes arrangements for budget setting and management, risk management, and ensuring the body makes decisions based on appropriate information

Potential types of recommendations

A range of different recommendations could be made following the completion of work on the body's arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, which are as follows:



Statutory recommendation

Written recommendations to the body under Section 24 (Schedule 7) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. A recommendation under schedule 7 requires the body to discuss and respond publicly to the report.

Key recommendation

The Code of Audit Practice requires that where auditors identify significant weaknesses in arrangements to secure value for money they should make recommendations setting out the actions that should be taken by the body. We have defined these recommendations as 'key recommendations'.

Improvement recommendation

These recommendations, if implemented should improve the arrangements in place at the body, but are not made as a result of identifying significant weaknesses in the body's arrangements

3. VFM - our procedures and conclusions

We have not yet completed our VFM work and so are not in a position to issue our Auditor's Annual Report. We expect to issue our Auditor's Annual Report in line with the deadline specified in the Auditor Guidance issued by the National Audit Office, which requires the Auditor's Annual Report to be issued no more than three months after the date of the opinion on the financial statements.

As part of our work we will consider whether there are any risks of significant weakness in the Council's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We have not identified any significant weaknesses from our initial planning work as reported in our March 2021 Audit Plan. No issues of concern have come to our attention since we ssued the audit plan.

4. Independence and ethics

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and confirm that we, as a firm, and each covered person, are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements.

Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit Office's Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in May 2020 which sets out supplementary guidance on ethical Auguirements for auditors of local public bodies.

Details of fees charged are detailed in Appendix D

Transparency

Grant Thornton publishes an annual Transparency Report, which sets out details of the action we have taken over the past year to improve audit quality as well as the results of internal and external quality inspections. For more details see <u>Transparency report 2020</u> (granthornton.co.uk)

4. Independence and ethics

Audit and non-audit services

For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Council. The following non-audit services were identified as well as the threats to our independence and safeguards that have been applied to mitigate these threats.

Service	Fees £	Threats identified	Safeguards
Audit related			
Certification of Housing Benefit Claim		Self-Interest (because this is a recurring fee)	The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee for this work is £22,000 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £61866 and in particular relative to Grant Thornton UK LLP's turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it. These factors all mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.
241		Self review (because GT provides audit services)	To mitigate against the self review threat, the timing of certification work is done after the audit has completed, materiality of the amounts involved to our opinion and unlikelihood of material errors arising and the Council has informed management who will decide whether to amend returns for our findings and agree the accuracy of our reports on grants.

Appendices

A. Action plan – Audit of Financial Statements

We have identified two recommendations for the Council as a result of issues identified during the course of our audit. We have agreed our recommendations with management and we will report on progress on these recommendations during the course of the 2021/22 audit. The matters reported here are limited to those deficiencies that we have identified during the course of our audit and that we have concluded are of sufficient importance to merit being reported to you in accordance with auditing standards.

Assessment	Issue and risk	Recommendations
22	The statutory accounting requirements per the CIPFA code include the use of a Capital Grants Unapplied Account. Currently the Council does not include a Capital Grants Unapplied Account in its financial statements. We confirmed that the transactions which would meet the criteria to be included in	We recommend that the value of transactions meeting the criteria to be accounted for as capital grants unapplied is assessed as part of closedown procedures in future years, Where transactions meeting the criteria are identified then these should be processed through a capital grants unapplied account.
Ω	this account were not material in 2020/21. We agreed that management would include additional narrative at Note 15 to clarify the position.	Management response
		The finance team has assessed capital transactions to identify receipts which should be classified as capital grants unapplied and identified that the balance on this account for 2020/21 was £nil. We will continue to undertake this assessment in future years as recommended.
	Management presented its draft financial statements to the 28 July 2021 Audit Governance and Standards Committee. The financial statements were therefore published with the agenda papers for that meeting on 20 July 2021. Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 the public have the right to inspect or ask questions about the accounts. Th public inspection period for the 2020/21 accounts was effectively triggered by publication and advertised on the Council's website as	It is recognised that, in circumstances where further work was required to finalise the accounts subsequent to initial publication, it was appropriate to publish a revised set of accounts. However, changes to the dates of the inspection period or to the content of the published accounts may cause confusion for the public. We recommend that the Council reviews its closedown timetable for 2021/22 to minimise the risk that the financial statements will need be re-published.
	commencing on 21 July 2021	Management response
	In practice further work was required to finalise the accounting entries in respect of property, plant and equipment. A revised version of accounts with material changes relating to these disclosures was published on 29 July 2021. The advertised period of inspection on the Council's website was amended to run from 30 July 2021. This updated period of inspection ran for the full period required by regulations.	We will continue to strive to ensure that the financial statements are free from error at the point of publication. Where amendments are identified or further information comes to light subsequent to publication, we will update the accounts and extend the inspection period accordingly, as has been done this year.

Controls

- High Significant effect on financial statements
- Medium Limited Effect on financial statements
- Low Best practice

B. Follow up of prior year recommendations

We identified one issue in the	Assessment	Issue and risk previously communicated	Update on actions taken to address the issue
audit of the Council's 2019/20 financial statements which led to a recommendation in our 2019/20 Audit Findings report. The recommendation as now been implemented y management.	✓	 Declarations of interest During our testing of related party disclosures we requested the latest declarations for review. The Council sends these to members on an annual basis and they were sent on 9 April 2020. At the time of the audit work in July 17 forms had not been received from members. We recommend that the process for managing the distribution and collections of returns is reviewed and the importance of responding is reiterated with members. Management response We accept this recommendation and will be reviewing our processes to ensure that declarations of interest are collected promptly in future. 	The Council has again sought declarations from all members and senior officers as part of yearend procedures for 2020/21. We noted that there were follow- up procedures for declarations not returned As at 31 August 2021 declarations had been received from all members and senior officers other than from one former councillor.

Assessment

- ✓ Action completed
- **X** Not yet addressed

C. Audit Adjustments

We are required to report all non trivial misstatements to those charged with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management. 245 Impact of adjusted misstatements

All adjusted misstatements are set out in detail below along with the impact on the key statements and the reported net expenditure for the year ending 31 March 2021.

Detail*	Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement £'000	Balance Sheet £' 000	Impact on total net expenditure £'000
Short term debtors Short term creditors		(238) 238	
Accrual error leading to matching overstatement of debtors and creditors.			
Usable reserves Unusable reserves		(58) 58	
Collection Fund accounting adjustment leading to movement between reserves			
Overall impact	0	0	0

*These adjustments exclude those arising from the reclassification of costs from PPE assets under construction to inventory as these are currently being finalised by management.

C. Audit Adjustments

We are required to report all non trivial misstatements to those charged with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management.

Misclassification and disclosure changes

The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements.

Disclosure omission	Adjusted?
Balance sheet In the draft accounts the balance of £6,644,000 for Capital Grants Receipts in Advance was shown as a short term liability. It was agreed that this balance should be split to identify both short-term (£2,706,000) and long-term (£3,938,000) liabilities.	4
Note 1 Additional disclosure table added to identify the Fees, Charges & Other Service Income accounted for under IFRS 15.	✓
Note 4 Additional disclosure included to identify the impact of a 10% change (£2.6m) in the value of the Council's investment property portfolio. Impact of a 10% change in the value of PPE amended from £7.6m to £8.6m.	√
Note 8 Note expanded to quantify the measure of materiality used by the Council when preparing the financial statements.	✓
Note 14 Fees for external audit services increased by £23,000 to reflect the fee notified in our 2020/21 Audit Plan.	
Note 17 Amendments to the capital commitments disclosure; commitment for Springfield Mill increased by £1,144,000 and for Kent Medical Campus reduced by £388,000.	
Note 26 In the draft accounts the total per the disclosure note for provisions did not agree to the balance sheet. Amendment agreed to the disclosure note increasing the total by £168,000.	√
Various minor changes to amounts and narrative at other disclosure notes	✓

C. Audit Adjustments



Impact of unadjusted misstatements

Our work in some areas is still in progress. Our work to date has not identified any unadjusted misstatements above the level which we are required to report to Those Charged With Governance.

Impact of prior year unadjusted misstatements

There are no prior year unadjusted misstatements.

D. Fees

We set out below our fees charged for the audit and the provision of non-audit services.

Audit fees	Proposed fee	Final fee
Council Audit	£61,866	TBC
Total audit fees (excluding VAT)	£61,866	TBC

Note proposed fee for the audit reconciles to Note 14 in the financial statements as follows; Obte 14: Total of £76,000 represents the 2020/21 audit fee of £61866 as communicated in our audit plan and additional fees of £14,500 for the 2019/20 audit which were not previously accrued.

Non-audit fees for other services	Proposed fee	Final fee
Housing benefit subsidy claim	£22,000	TBC
Total non-audit fees (excluding VAT)	£22,000	TBC

Our audit opinion is included below.

Subject to the completion of outstanding work we anticipate we will provide the Council with an unmodified audit report

Independent auditor's report to the members of Maidstone Borough Council

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion on financial statements

24

We have audited the financial statements of Maidstone Borough Council (the

'Authority') for the year ended 31 March 2021, which comprise the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Movement in Reserves Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement, the Collection Fund Statement and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

• give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 2021 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended;

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21; and

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law, as required by the Code of Audit Practice (2020) ("the Code of Audit Practice") approved by the Comptroller and Auditor General. Our

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 'Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We are responsible for concluding on the appropriateness of the Director of Finance and Business Improvement's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Authority's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the auditor's opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Authority to cease to continue as a going concern.

In our evaluation of the Director of Finance and Business Improvement's conclusions, and in accordance with the expectation set out within the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21 that the Authority's financial statements shall be prepared on a going concern basis, we considered the inherent risks associated with the continuation of services provided by the Authority. In doing so we had regard to the guidance provided in Practice Note 10 Audit of financial statements and regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2020) on the application of ISA (UK) 570 Going Concern to public sector entities. We assessed the reasonableness of the basis of preparation used by the Authority and the Authority's disclosures over the going concern period.

from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Authority's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Director of Finance and Business Improvement's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

The responsibilities of the Director of Finance and Business Improvement with respect to going concern are described in the 'Responsibilities of the Authority, Director of Finance and Business Improvement and Those Charged with Governance for the financial statements' section of this report.

Other information

The Director of Finance and Business Improvement is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Annual Governance Statement and the information included in the Statement of Accounts other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of Audit Practice

Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office in April 2020 on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with 'delivering good governance in Local Government Framework 2016 Edition' published by CIPFA and SOLACE or is misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from our audit. We are not required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement addresses all risks and controls or that risks are satisfactorily addressed by internal controls.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters required by the Code of Audit Practice

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements and our knowledge of the Authority, the other information published together with the financial statements in the Statement of Accounts and the Annual Governance Statement for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if:

- we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or
- we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or
- we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

• we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

• we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

Responsibilities of the Authority, the Director of Finance and Business Improvement and Those Charged with Governance for the financial statements

As explained in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts the Authority is required to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this authority, that officer is the Director of Finance and Business Improvement. The Director of Finance and Business Improvement is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Director of Finance and Business Improvement determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Director of Finance and Business Improvement is responsible for assessing the Authority's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless there is an intention by government that the services provided by the Authority will no longer be provided.

The Audit, Governance and Standards Committee are Those Charged with Governance. Those Charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the Authority's financial reporting process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that material misstatements in the financial statements may not be detected, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with the ISAs (UK).

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

• We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the Authority and determined that the most significant, which are directly relevant to specific assertions in the financial statements, are those related to the reporting frameworks (international accounting standards as interpreted and adapted by the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United

Kingdom 2020/21, The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, the Local Government Act 2003, the Local Government Act 1972 and the Local Government Finance Act 1988 (as amended by the Local Government Finance Act 1992) and the Local Government Finance Act 2012

- We enquired of senior officers and the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee concerning the Authority's policies and procedures relating to:
- the identification, evaluation and compliance with laws and regulations;
- the detection and response to the risks of fraud; and

Compliance with laws and regulations.

• We enquired of senior officers and the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee whether they were aware of any instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations or whether they had any knowledge of actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

• We assessed the susceptibility of the Authority's financial statements to material misstatement, including how fraud might occur, by evaluating officers' incentives and opportunities for manipulation of the financial statements. This included the evaluation of the risk of management override of controls, fraudulent revenue recognition and fraudulent expenditure recognition.

• Our audit procedures involved:

- evaluation of the design effectiveness of controls that the Director of Finance and Business Improvement has in place to prevent and detect fraud;

- journal entry testing, with a focus on unusual journals made during the year and the accounts production stage for appropriateness and corroboration

- challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in its significant accounting estimates in respect of land and buildings, investment property and

defined benefit pensions liability valuations;

- assessing the extent of compliance with the relevant laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement item.

• These audit procedures were designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements were free from fraud or error. However, detecting irregularities that result from fraud is inherently more difficult than detecting those that result from error, as those irregularities that result from fraud may involve collusion, deliberate concealment, forgery or intentional misrepresentations. Also, the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we would become aware of it.

• Assessment of the appropriateness of the collective competence and capabilities of the engagement team included consideration of the engagement team's.

- understanding of, and practical experience with audit engagements of a similar nature and complexity through appropriate training and participation

- knowledge of the local government sector

- understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements specific to the Authority including:

- the provisions of the applicable legislation
- guidance issued by CIPFA/LASAAC and SOLACE
- the applicable statutory provisions.
- In assessing the potential risks of material misstatement, we obtained an understanding of:

- the Authority's operations, including the nature of its income and expenditure and its services and of its objectives and strategies to understand the classes of transactions, account balances, expected financial statement disclosures and business risks that

may result in risks of material misstatement.

- the Authority's control environment, including the policies and procedures implemented by the Authority to ensure compliance with the requirements of the financial reporting framework.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements – the Authority's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

N

Matter on which we are required to report by exception – the Authority's arrangements of for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, we have not been able to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2021.

Our work on the Authority's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources is not yet complete. The outcome of our work will be reported in our commentary on the Authority's arrangements in our Auditor's Annual Report. If we identify any significant weaknesses in these arrangements, these will be reported by exception in a further auditor's report. We are satisfied that this work does not have a material effect on our opinion on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021.

Responsibilities of the Authority

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.

Auditor's responsibilities for the review of the Authority's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to be satisfied that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.

We undertake our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2021. This guidance sets out the arrangements that fall within the scope of 'proper arrangements'. When reporting on these arrangements, the Code of Audit Practice requires auditors to structure their commentary on arrangements under three specified reporting criteria:

• Financial sustainability: how the Authority plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its services;

• Governance: how the Authority ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks; and

• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the Authority uses information about its costs and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services.

We document our understanding of the arrangements the Authority has in place for each of these three specified reporting criteria, gathering sufficient evidence to support our risk assessment and commentary in our Auditor's Annual Report. In undertaking our work, we consider whether there is evidence to suggest that there are significant weaknesses in arrangements.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements – Delay in certification of completion of the audit

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate for Maidstone Borough Council for the year ended 31 March 2021 in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice until we have completed:

• our work on the Authority's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources and issued our Auditor's Annual Report'

• the work necessary to issue our Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) Component Assurance statement for the Authority for the year ended 31 March 2021.

We are satisfied that this work does not have a material effect on the financial statements.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Authority's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the Authority's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Signature:

Paul Dossett

Key Audit Partner

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Local Auditor

London

Date:



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

'Grant Thornton' refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another's acts or omissions.

grantthornton.co.uk